
 
 
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA 

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 
www.flintshire.gov.uk 

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR 
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 

www.siryfflint.gov.uk 
 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg 

To: Cllr Ron Hampson (Chairman) 

Councillors: Amanda Bragg, David Cox, 
Peter Curtis, Ron Davies, Glenys Diskin, 
Rosetta Dolphin, Jim Falshaw, Alison Halford, 
George Hardcastle, Ray Hughes, Brian Lloyd, 
Mike Reece, Gareth Roberts and Sharon Williams 

 
CS/NG 

 
29 November 2012 

 
Sharon Thomas 01352 702324 

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
A meeting of the HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in 
the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on 
WEDNESDAY, 5TH DECEMBER, 2012 at 10.00 AM to consider the following items. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Democracy & Governance Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES  

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS)  

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 31 October 
2012. 

4 GYPSY/TRAVELLERS NEEDS ASSESSMENT (Pages 9 - 16) 

 Report of Director of Community Services 

Public Document Pack



5 QUARTER 2 SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS (Pages 17 - 58) 

 Report of Member Engagement Manager  

6 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 59 - 64) 

 Report of Member Engagement Manager  

 



HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
31 OCTOBER 2012 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee of 
Flintshire County Council held at Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold 
CH7 6NA on Wednesday, 31 October 2012 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Ron Hampson (Chairman) 
Councillors: Peter Curtis, Glenys Diskin, Rosetta Dolphin, Jim Falshaw, 
Alison Halford, George Hardcastle (Vice-Chairman), Brian Lloyd, Mike Reece, 
Gareth Roberts and Sharon Williams 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors Amanda Bragg and Ray Hughes 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Haydn Bateman 
 
CONTRIBUTORS:  Cabinet Member for Housing, Director of Community 
Services, Head of Housing, Neighbourhood Housing Manager (South), Interim 
Asset Manager and Supporting People Manager 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer 
 
 

25. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS) 
 

No declarations of interest were made. 
 

26. MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2012 had been 
circulated with the agenda. 
 
Accuracy 
 

On the Forward Work Programme, Councillor A.M. Halford commented 
that she had been aware of Brett Sadler’s departure from the Council and asked 
that the minute be amended to reflect this. 
 
Matters Arising 

 
Secure/Introductory Tenancy Agreement - The Head of Housing explained 

that a legal condition could not be included in tenancy agreements for tenants to 
purchase contents insurance, however officers would be proactive in encouraging 
as many new tenants as possible to sign up to the scheme. 

 
Local Housing Strategy - In response to a query raised by Councillor 

Halford on comments made by the Principal Planner on the identification of sites, 
the Head of Housing said that a current review of garage sites may identify land 
for other uses in addition to land previously identified.  She added that an item on 
adopted/un-adopted land would be considered by the Committee in April 2013.  
Councillor Halford suggested that as this was a Housing/Planning issue, the 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

Director of Community Services liaise with the Planning section.  The Director 
agreed to do this. 

 
Councillor P.J. Curtis explained that his comments regarding the housing 

waiting list had been due to reports that some people had been informed that 
tenants in the Flint maisonettes were being deemed a priority and that the Head 
of Housing was looking into this.  The Head of Housing referred to a report to the 
Deputy Leader which had indicated that this was untrue and said that she would 
seek permission on circulating this to the Committee. 

 
Quarter 2 Service Performance Reports - Councillor R. Dolphin sought an 

update on comments made on the planned maintenance of fences.  The Cabinet 
Member for Housing said that discussions on such maintenance work was 
ongoing and that although no work for ‘Planned - Other’ was to go ahead for the 
current year, any included for future years would be minimal.  She added that any 
fencing issues causing a safety breach would be resolved via the health and 
safety budget.  Councillor Dolphin asked whether such work in next year’s budget 
would be rolled forward in the programme to help alleviate the backlog.  The 
Head of Housing said this was a possibility although only a limited budget was 
available as Members had previously agreed to prioritise heating, kitchen and 
bathroom upgrades.  If additional funding could not be identified, then Members 
would need to make choices on any additional programme lines against available 
budget.  The views of the Committee would be sought on proposals for the 
2013/14 capital budget in January 2013. 

 
On house sharing and the re-designation of unsuitable sheltered housing, 

Councillor Curtis felt that there should be involvement from the Committee in 
forming proposals and suggested that a sub-group be set up to do this.  The 
Head of Housing said that proposals discussed with the Cabinet Member would 
be brought to the Committee and that the points raised by the Sheltered Housing 
Working Group had been taken into account.  Councillor Curtis felt that Members’ 
knowledge of their own wards was vital and the Head of Housing replied that any 
proposals for re-designating properties would include consultation with local 
Members. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That, subject to the aforementioned amendment, the minutes be approved 

as a correct record and signed by the Chairman; 
 
(b) That the Director of Community Services liaise with the Planning Manager 

and Head of Planning in regard to the need to identify land for 
development; and 

 
(c) That the Head of Housing seek permission to circulate the report on the 

housing waiting list to the Committee. 
 

27. UPDATE ON THE REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
 

The Head of Housing introduced the report to update Members on 
progress with repairs and maintenance service performance improvements.  The 
Interim Asset Manager outlined key workstreams such as the introduction of the 

Page 2



 

new Contact Centre system in the Housing Asset Management section by 
December 2012, the developments in the new Stores service set up in April 2012 
and consultation on the introduction of extended service hours to help improve 
services.  Members welcomed the report and raised a number of queries. 

 
Councillor A.M. Halford asked questions on Single Status, pay rates for 

trades staff and training requirements.  The Head of Housing explained that Job 
Evaluation Questionnaires (JEQs) for the Asset Management back office staff 
were shortly due to be assessed.  She said that following benchmarking with 
other Authorities, a multi-skilling development programme had been agreed to 
ensure that a robust process was put in place.  On training, there were already a 
number of multi-skilled trades staff who were keen to and were undertaking tasks 
in alternative trades, and officers were working with Trade Unions to develop a 
four-tiered approach to staff development: apprentices, those qualified in a single 
trade, those who were also able to carry out minor tasks in an alternative trade 
and multi-skilled tradesmen who were able to undertake a complete job in a 
range of trades. 

 
Following a further query, it was confirmed that the training would apply to 

the in-house team who were Flintshire employees, and not to contractors.  It was 
also clarified that there would be 1600 training days over a 2½ year period.  The 
Interim Asset Manager said it was important to note that more multi-skilled trades 
staff would enable repairs to be completed the first time around and improve the 
service to tenants. 

 
Responding to comments made by Councillor R. Dolphin, the Head of 

Housing confirmed that one day per 16 week period would be allocated for study 
leave and that training small numbers of trades staff over a 16 week period would 
not have a negative impact on services.  It was hoped that newly trained staff 
would remain with the Council and that increased job satisfaction would 
encourage this.  Following a further question, the Head of Housing said that the 
Committee had previously received detailed information on the introduction of 
extended service hours and that this could be re-circulated if Members wished.  
She commented that these proposals had generated positive involvement from 
Trade Unions and a willingness to move forward. 

 
In response to questions from Councillor M.A. Reece, it was 

acknowledged that there had been problems with some vehicles starting in the 
morning and that an ongoing review of fleet vehicle provision had prevented the 
procurement of new vehicles, however these issues had been raised with the 
Head of Streetscene who was leading on the review and resolving additional 
issues in his Fleet team.  The Head of Housing spoke of the necessity for utilising 
agency workers on occasions where workload dictated, for example when 
permanent trade staff had been required to work on the in-house Disabled 
Facilities Grant pilot.  She added that the long term aim was for internal teams to 
carry out more capital work as revenue backlogs were addressed. 

 
Councillor P.J. Curtis agreed with the concept of multi-skilled workers, with 

the exception of gas and electrical technicians who should be trained to a specific 
standard in their areas.  He also said that existing trades staff who did not qualify 
as multi-skilled should be allowed to continue in their own areas and not be 
penalised.  The Head of Housing reassured Members on both points but said that 

Page 3



 

new apprentices would be made aware of the expectation for their skills to 
develop over time.  The Interim Asset Manager agreed to seek a response from 
the Fleet Manager as to why operatives were not allowed to jump start Council 
owned vans. 

 
In response to a query by Councillor J.E. Falshaw on the checking of van 

stocks, the Interim Asset Manager spoke of work to enable the back office IT 
system to keep a record of stock used. 

 
Councillor Halford referred to ongoing problems with the mobile devices 

provided by Capita, which had been discussed at the previous meeting.  The 
Head of Housing said that a meeting had been held with Capita.  She said that 
options such as using a different software version and separating data from voice 
were being explored prior to meeting again with Capita.  She gave assurance that 
officers were committed to resolving the problem as soon as possible, 
commenting that another Council using the same device had experienced similar 
problems.  Responding to concerns raised by Councillor Halford, it was explained 
that Capita had provided the entire housing management computer system for 
Flintshire and were used by many Councils and Housing Associations with 
differing devices.  Due to the ongoing problems experienced, Councillor Halford 
requested that a standard item be included on the Committee’s Forward Work 
Programme and this was agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the report be noted; 
 
(b) That the Interim Asset Manager seek a response from the Fleet Manager 

on why operatives were forbidden to jump start Council vehicles; and 
 
(c) That a standard item on the mobile PDA devices be included on the 

Committee’s Forward Work Programme. 
 

28. ESTATE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

The Neighbourhood Housing Manager (South) presented an update report 
on proposals to develop Estate Management services and sought views from 
Members on a number of areas. 
 
Assisted Garden Service 
 

Views were sought on the consideration of low level intervention by 
gardeners in carrying out a ‘good neighbour’ check at tenants’ properties whilst 
undertaking work and whether this option or high level intervention should be 
considered as part of the tender process.  Members were also asked to consider 
options for the collection of grass cuttings. 

 
Councillor P.J. Curtis agreed with the need for low level intervention but 

said that clarity would be required on the level of responsibility included in the job 
description of gardeners.  The Head of Housing confirmed that this would be 
included in the contract of employment and that employees would only need to 
be as observant as a member of the public in reporting any concerns. 

Page 4



 

 
Councillor A.M. Halford thanked officers for the report but expressed 

concern that garden operatives may be expected to carry out tasks conflicting 
with that of trained officers in Social Services.  The Director of Community 
Services explained that low level intervention would be an expectation for the 
operative to show a level of awareness of a good neighbour in which no special 
skills would be required.  On the question of cost, he added that this would 
depend on which level of intervention that Members supported and that a higher 
level would require further development. 

 
Councillor R. Dolphin also agreed with the proposal for low level 

intervention but said that consideration of a higher level would need costings 
provided.  On grass cutting, she suggested that brown bins be utilised and that 
tenants should be asked if they required this service as opposed to blanket 
provision, with a small nominal fee applied.  On the qualifying criteria, she felt that 
the proposed disqualification of ‘able bodied relatives living in Flintshire’ should 
be removed as some residents in need of the service may not be in contact with 
their local relatives. 

 
On the proposal to amend the age criteria to tenants over the age of 65, 

Councillor H.G. Roberts suggested that this could be further extended to those 
aged 70+ as many may be able to carry out tasks. 

 
Following a comment made by Councillor J.E. Falshaw on the benefits of 

mulching, it was explained that mulching mowers were not currently used but that 
this could be a future consideration.  The Chairman commented on a number of 
complaints made about grass cutting in sheltered accommodation. 
 
Environmental Visual Audits (EVAs) 
 

The Neighbourhood Housing Manager (South) provided background to 
EVAs and thanked the Cabinet Member for Housing for championing these.  She 
sought support from Members for EVAs in working with the Housing team, North 
Wales Police and Neighbourhood Watch to help identify local issues. 

 
Councillor Dolphin commented that the details of forthcoming EVAs did not 

include any in the Holywell area and asked what could be done in relation to 
tenants who did not maintain their gardens.  Councillor G.D. Diskin referred to a 
recent EVA in her ward and said that letters sent out had helped encourage 
tenants to attend to their gardens.  The Neighbourhood Housing Manager (South) 
said that where tenants repeatedly failed to maintain their gardens, contractors 
had been utilised to tidy up and the tenant recharged.  She added that Members 
may wish to consider more frequent use of this.  The Cabinet Member for 
Housing added that this had been incorporated in the tenants’ contracts.  
Councillor H.G. Roberts asked if this could be legally enforced if the tenant 
refused to pay to which officers replied that the Corporate Debt Policy would be 
used. 
 

Page 5



 

Garage Review 
 

The Neighbourhood Housing Manager (South) reported on a review of 
private garages built on Council owned plots and asked Members to consider 
future use of any within their wards. 

 
In relation to queries raised by Councillor A.M. Halford, the Neighbourhood 

Housing Manager (South) said that Housing officers were in discussion with the 
Legal section on giving notice to tenants.  On clarity of information in the report, 
she spoke of the difficulty in collating data from different sources and offered to 
show Members the locations of private garage plots within their wards if 
requested. 
 
Allotments (Housing Land) 
 

Councillor Dolphin spoke in support of the increase in rent of the Dobshill 
allotment in line with others and also felt that the current standard ground rent of 
plots managed by Leisure Services could be increased. 

 
Councillor Halford agreed, commenting that it was difficult to acquire sites 

for allotments and that they could be a valuable asset.  The Neighbourhood 
Housing Manager (South) said that discussion was needed with Leisure Services 
on whether the ground rent amount was sufficient to cover maintenance.  
Councillor Halford referred to the renting out of garages.  The Head of Housing 
said that this report was focussing on private garages built on Council owned 
land and that a review of Council owned garages was ongoing. 

 
Councillor Falshaw remarked that some Council owned garages may be 

being used for storage.  The Neighbourhood Housing Manager (South) said that 
this may be the case as some were so old, they may not be capable of 
accommodating modern larger vehicles. 
 
Estate Caretaker Review 
 

Members of the Committee commented on the excellent job undertaken by 
the Estates Caretakers. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) Assisted Garden Service - that the Committee support low level 

intervention by garden operatives and that any proposals for high level 
intervention would require further information including costings; 

 
(b) Assisted Garden Service - that the Committee support the collection of 

grass cuttings at a small charge, with the use of brown bins to minimise 
cost; 

 
(c) That the Committee support in principle charging for the Garden Service; 
 
(d) Environmental Visual Audits - that Members support the EVAs in helping 

to identify local issues; 
 

Page 6



 

(e) Garage Review - that Members of the Committee consider the future use 
of private garages on Council owned plots within their wards; 

 
(f) Allotments (Housing land) - that the Committee support the transfer of 

management of the Dobshill site to Leisure Services, the increase in rent 
for allotments situated on Housing land, the introduction of standardised 
rental agreements and a Council Tenant Preference Group for allotments 
situated on Housing Service owned land; 

 
(g) Maintenance of Housing Land (Street Scene) - that the Committee support 

in principle the early proposals to transfer the management of HRA land 
maintenance to Street Scene with a view to improving the customer 
experience; and 

 
(h) Estate Caretaker Review - that the considerations be noted. 
 

29. SARTH 
 

The Director of Community Services provided an update on the 
development of a Single Access Route To Housing (SARTH) across the North 
East Wales sub-region and sought Members’ views on progressing to the next 
stages of the project following the workshop held in July 2012 on a Joint Register, 
Joint Policy and Joint Advice and Options. 

 
The Supporting People Manager said it was important to note that 

Flintshire had not yet agreed to sign up to the scheme and that the aim of the 
report was to seek support from the Committee on proceeding to the next stages 
of the project. 

 
In response to questions by Councillor A.M. Halford, the Supporting 

People Manager said that there would not be any additional costs other than 
those outlined and that savings would be made as a result of the initiative.  She 
added that there would be no long-term development costs and that the one-off 
initial development cost of £394,000 would need to be made as part of the 
partnership.  It had been estimated that Flintshire would need to pay around 
£23,000 for 2013/14. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the development of the project to date and the responses to 

questions from the Member Workshop be noted; and 
 
(b) That the Committee support the continuation with the SARTH project and 

contribution to development costs, subject to budget approval. 
 

30. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report which gave 
Members the opportunity to consider and update the Committee’s Forward Work 
Programme. 

 

Page 7



 

The Head of Housing requested that the HRA Subsidy report due to be 
received at the December 2012 meeting be deferred to a later meeting at a stage 
when further clarity had been given by the Welsh Government.  She suggested 
that if it was possible to bring a different report in its place, this could be arranged 
in consultation with the Chair and Member Engagement Manager.  This was 
agreed by the Committee.  Councillor G. Hardcastle suggested that the 
Homelessness and Welfare Reform proposals scheduled for January 2013 be 
brought forward to the December 2012 meeting.  The Head of Housing would 
endeavour to bring the report to the December 2012 meeting and if not, it would 
be brought in January 2012.  She also encouraged Members to attend the 
Welfare Reform workshop scheduled for 12 November 2012. 

 
In response to discussion on Capita and mobile devices earlier in the 

meeting, the Committee agreed to receive these reports on a quarterly basis. 
 
The Member Engagement Manager drew Members’ attention to the 

Committee’s budget meeting scheduled for 22 January 2013 which had been 
confirmed in writing.  In response to a query on frequency of meetings, he 
advised that the Committee met twice per ten week cycle. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the draft Forward Work Programme be agreed with the following changes: 
 
- The HRA Subsidy report to be deferred from the December 2012 meeting 

to a later date and any replacement report such as the Homelessness 
and Welfare Reform proposals to be brought in consultation with the 
Chair and Member Engagement Manager; and 

 
- That quarterly reports on Capita be received by the Committee. 
 

31. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE 
 

There was one member of the press in attendance. 
 
 

(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 12.00 pm) 
 
 

   

 Chairman  
 

Page 8



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 
 

WEDNESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2012 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

SUBJECT:  
 

GYPSY-TRAVELLER NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

 
 
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.01 To consider the Gypsy-Traveller Needs Assessment that will inform 

the development of a Gypsy-Traveller Strategy 
 

2.00 BACKGROUND 
 

2.01 
 
 
 
 
 
2.02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.04 

Flintshire participated in the wider North West Wales Gypsy Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment (GTAA). The study was conducted on 
behalf of Anglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire and  Gwynedd 
councils by Bangor University.  Wrexham have carried out an 
assessment of their own separately. 
 
The collaborative approach is in line with Welsh Government 
guidance which urges “local authorities to work in a regional capacity 
and share the legal, moral, financial and political responsibility to 
address the accommodation inequality experienced by the Gypsy and 
Traveller community in Wales” (Travelling to a Better Future, Welsh 
Government). 
 
There are currently five authorised sites for Gypsies and Travellers in 
Flintshire. There is one local authority owned site, Riverside, at 
Queensferry which has 20 pitches and is managed currently by the 
Gypsy community in partnership with the Council. The Council is 
currently exploring the extension of the Riverside site onto under 
utilised land in its ownership adjacent to the current site. (This site has 
the potential to provide up to 20 residential pitches). 
 
There are four privately owned sites that benefit from planning 
consent. These are two long standing sites at Corbetts Yard, 
Sandycroft which has a capacity of 22 pitches and Miftford caravan 
site at Gwespyr which has a capacity of 20 pitches. There are also 
two smaller private sites in Flintshire which have been the subject of 
recent planning applications and subsequent appeals. These sites are 
at Dollar Park, Greenfield where a temporary permission exists up to 
2016. The second recent private site is at Gwern Lane, Hope where a 
permanent consent was granted on appeal in May 2011 for four 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



caravans. 
 

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS 
 

3.01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.04 
 
 
 
 
3.05 
 
 
 
 
 
3.06 
 

The Gypsy Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
North Wales is a popular location for “stop over” for Gypsies and 
Travellers in general, as a principle travelling route passes through 
all of the local authority areas in North Wales. That said the 
population of Gypsies and Travellers in North East Wales is 
constrained in its choice of where it can stay by the pattern of 
provision of sites, which is skewed predominately to Flintshire and 
Wrexham, and also conversely by the lack of any authorised 
provision in Conwy or Denbighshire. 
 
In terms of current site and pitch provision in North Wales Flintshire 
is the most significant provider of any North Wales local authority.  
According to the January 2012 caravan count Flintshire 
accommodates 66 caravans representing 58% of all of the caravans 
available in North Wales.  Once the 37 caravans provided by 
Wrexham is excluded (33%), the remaining authorities in North 
Wales have only 10 recorded caravans between them, only 9% of 
the North Wales total, and none of which are on authorized sites.   
 
This inequality of choice and provision has been clearly recognised 
by the Welsh Government in its framework for action, which also 
identified the imbalance of responsibility taken and leadership 
shown at a regional level to address and redress these factors. This  
frustration at the inadequacy of responses of local authorities to the 
issue of making provision for the need of Gypsies and Travellers 
has been given further expression by views expressed on emerging 
Local Development Plans (LDP's) in North Wales at examination, 
and via Welsh Government comments on plans at pre–examination 
stage. The proposal contained within the recent Housing White 
Paper gives the clearest indication that more needs to be done with 
proposals that local authorities will in future have a statutory 
obligation to provide sites based on an assessment of need. 
 
As outlined earlier, the matter of need is less one of debating its 
existence, but rather how and more importantly where this need will 
be met. This is a key question encapsulated in the sub-regional 
approach taken to the GTAA. 
 
This regional collaborative approach follows the approach supported 
and requested by the Welsh Government emphasising with it the 
need to accept and share the “legal, moral, financial and political 
responsibility to address the accommodation inequality experienced 
by the Gypsy and Traveller Community in Wales”. 
 
The main findings of the GTAA are attached at Appendix 1 and will 
be commented on shortly, however it is important firstly to 

Page 10



 
 
 
3.07 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.08 
 
 
 
 
 
3.09 
 
 
 
 
3.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.11 
 
 
 
 

understand the principle basis of the study and the main 
implications of the outcome of the study and its findings. 
 
The study shows that the current distribution of supply of sites is 
skewed to certain locations and from this the distribution of any 
need it has assessed is also skewed to where the population 
currently has to live. It is therefore not surprising that the needs 
calculation for permanent sites shows an unbalanced distribution, 
with a clear bias towards locations where there is current provision 
(authorised or otherwise) i.e. Flintshire, Gwynedd and Anglesey. 
Also, due to the method of calculating “growth” and various 
assumptions made in the study, the relationship that emerges is that 
the higher the current supply of pitches in an area, and specifically 
Flintshire, the greater the resulting calculated need. 
 
On the one hand this is the function of a technical (and in the main 
hypothetical) calculation of population growth. In another sense the 
study shows how the population of Gypsies and Travellers in North 
Wales as presently accommodated, would grow if assumptions 
made come to fruition. 
 
Given the geographic spread of the study area and the authorities 
covered, the correct way to interpret the basis and findings of the 
study is therefore not as an estimate of need where it arises, but 
rather as an estimate of need where it should be met. 
 
This fundamental point is backed up by the fact that the Gypsy and 
Traveller community surveyed were asked to set out where new site 
accommodation should be located. This demand for site locations is 
set out below. Significantly and unsurprisingly, this evidence 
demonstrates a need for sites at strategic locations along the main 
travelling route through North Wales, with none of the top locations 
being locations within Flintshire. The most referenced locations 
were for permanent sites. None of these locations are in Flintshire 
and reflect the need to rebalance the current provision. 
 
Table 1: Area preferences of adult Gypsy Travellers (permanent 
accommodation) 

Number of 
responses 

Town/ area. 

1-5  Mold, Queensferry, Holywell, Flint 
A further 15 locations were noted outside 
Flintshire including the A55 corridor 

6-10 4 locations were identified outside Flintshire 

 
The Council’s view is that the findings and outcome of this GTAA 
are critical to the understanding of where need should be met in 
North Wales. What must be done from this study is for the study 
partners to examine the findings, to agree the actual level of need 
and to accept and agree a sub-regional distribution of new sites 

Page 11



 
 
 
 
3.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.14 
 
 
 
3.15 

throughout North Wales that is fair and equitable to all local 
authorities and also to the needs of the Gypsy and Traveller 
community.  
 
From the GTAA, it is clear that this Council presently meets its 
obligations towards the needs of Gypsies and Travellers in North 
Wales far more responsibly than any other local authority. The 
GTAA has clearly demonstrated that the main factor in assessing 
the need for further sites for Gypsies and Travellers is where that 
need should be met, rather than just where it arises. 
 
Gypsy and Traveller Strategy 
Although the Council is currently delivering and managing a range 
of services to the Gypsy - Traveller community there is a need for a 
coordinated approach. Consequently it is recommended that a 
Gypsy – Traveller strategy be developed using the results of the 
GTAA as a base and drawing together the range of activities 
currently being delivered in Flintshire, coordinating with other public 
authorities and agencies. 
 
The Welsh Government has provided clear guidance within the 
national Gypsy-Traveller strategy and this will be taken into account 
in developing the strategy. 
 
The timescale is to commence work on the Gypsy-Traveller strategy 
in early 2013 with project being completed in September 2013. This 
will coincide with the Spring travelling season and will ensure that 
opportunities to engage with the Gypsy-Traveller community are 
maximised. Opportunities will also be taken to incorporate 
consultation within the emerging LDP process. 
  

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.01 That the committee receives the findings of the GTAA and endorses 
the approach to develop a dedicated Gypsy – Traveller Strategy for 
Flintshire 
 

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.01 The GTAA indicates  growth for additional caravan pitches.  Should 
the Council decide to expand its current provision the potential cost 
has not yet been fully quantified however Welsh Government grant 
assistance can be applied for to assist in meeting these costs.   
 

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 
 

6.01 There is no direct anti-poverty impact emerging from the GTAA other 
than accepting that in the main the Gypsy and Traveller community 
features amongst those communities most likely to suffer the effects 
of poverty. 

Page 12



 
7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

 
7.01 There is no direct environmental impact emerging from the GTAA. 

The potential for small-scale environmental impact from isolated 
unauthorised encampments is outside the scope of this report but will 
be considered as part of the merging Gypsy-Traveller strategy. 

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 

8.01 The GTAA will make an important contribution towards identifying and 
meeting the needs of the Gypsy-Traveller community who typically 
suffer from inequality 
 

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.01 Although there a no direct financial implications emerging form the 
GTAA the estimation of the need top make further provision in the 
form of permanent or temporary site provision suggests that additional 
personnel may be required. The implications of any additional 
provision have yet to be fully quantified but will form part of the 
emerging Gypsy-Traveller strategy. 
 

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 

10.01 Consultation with the Gypsy-Traveller community was carried out prior 
to the commencement of the GTAA. No further consultation has been 
carried out since the completion of the study. It is however intended 
that full consultation with the Gypsy-Traveller and settled communities 
will be undertaken as part of developing Flintshire’s emerging Gypsy-
Traveller strategy. 
 

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 

 Representatives of the Gypsy-Traveller community were involved in 
the selection of the consultants used to carry out the interviews. 
Across the study area a total of 93 responses were received from 
adult Gypsies and Travellers and a further 43 from a survey of young 
Gypsies and Travellers. 
 

12.00 APPENDICES 
 

12.01 Appendix 1: Main findings of the GTAA 
 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

  
 Contact Officer: David Humphreys 

Telephone:  01352703820 
Email:   david.humphreys@flintshire.gov.uk 

Page 13



 
 
   

Page 14



APPENDIX 1 

Table: Gypsy – Traveller Residential Needs Calculation 2011-16  

  LA 1 LA 2 (Flintshire) LA 4 LA 5 Total 

 Current Residential Supply  

1 Socially rented pitches 0 0 20 7 0 27 

2 Private authorised pitches 0 0 44 5 0 49 

3 Total authorised pitches 0 0 66 12 0 78 

4 Plots for Travelling Show people 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Residential pitch need 2011-16  

5 End of temporary planning 

permissions 

0 0 6 0 0 6 

6 New household formation from sites 0 0 10 2 0 12 

7 Unauthorised developments 

[Tolerated/not tolerated] 

0 0 2 2 0 4 

8a 

 

Movement between sites and 

housing (out of site)  

0 0 0 -1 0 -1 

8b 

 

(into site) 2 1 5 5 1 14 

9 Closure of sites 0 0 0 0 0 0 

10 Unauthorised encampments 2 2 2 0 10 16 

11 Additional residential need  

 :Currently overcrowded 0 0 12 1 0 13 

 :Net in migration/outmigration 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 :Other residential need 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 Additional supply 2011-16  

12 Pitches currently closed but re-

entering use  

0 0 0 0 0 0 

13 Pitches with permission but not 

developed  

0 0 0 0 0 0 

14 New sites planned  0 0 5 0 0 0 

15 Vacancies on socially rented sites  0 0 0 0 0 0 

16 Total Supply 2011-16 0 0 0 0 0 0 

17 Residential Need Shortfall 2011-16 4 3 35 9 11 59 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 
 

5TH DECEMBER 2012 

REPORT BY: 
 

MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 

SUBJECT:  
 

QUARTER 2 SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS  

 
 
1.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.02 
 
 
1.03 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To note and consider the 2012/13 Quarter 2 service performance reports 
produced at the Head of Service/Divisional level under the adopted 
business model of the Council.  The reports cover the Quarter 2 period 
(July to September 2012).  
 
To note the position of the Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges 
(SARC) contained within the performance reports. 
 
To note the progress made against the Improvement Targets contained 
within the performance reports.  
 

  
2.00 
 
2.01 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The quarterly performance reports seek to provide the reader with the 
‘narrative’ of quarterly performance, which gives the context for overall 
performance.  These reports are a quarterly review of service plans.   
 

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS  
 
3.01 
 
 
 
 
3.02 
 
 
 
 
3.03 

 
Copies of the detailed Quarter 2 (July to September 2012) performance 
reports are attached at Appendix 1 
 
 
Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges  
Each quarterly performance report contains an update of each of the 
relevant strategic risks and challenges.  This update has been provided 
by each of the lead responsible officers and is available for comment and 
review.   
 
A draft revised SARC summary position of the present Red (high risk), 
Amber (medium risk) and Green (low risk) status for all of the reported 
strategic risks and challenges is provided at Appendix 1. 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 That the Committee consider  the 2012/13 Quarter 2 performance reports 
produced by the Heads of Service, highlight and monitor poor 
performance and feedback details of any challenge to Corporate 
Resources O & S Committee who are responsible for the overview and 
monitoring of improvement targets.   
 

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 None as a result of this report.  
 

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 
 

 None as a result of this report.  
 

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

 None as a result of this report.  
 

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 

 None as a result of this report.  
 

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 None as a result of this report.  
 

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 

 Not applicable 
 

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 

 Not applicable  
 

12.00 APPENDICES 
 

 Appendix 1 -  Housing Qtr 2 Performance Report 
 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 None. 
 Contact Officer   Robert Robins  

Telephone:         01352 702320   
Email:                  robert.robins@flintshire.gov.uk  

 

Page 18



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 1 of 39 

Quarterly Performance Report – Housing Services 

 
Report Author Head of Housing Services 
Report Date 25 October 2012 
Report Period Quarter 2: 1 July 2012 to 30 September  2012 

Introduction 

The report is produced on a quarterly basis and provided to Executive members for 
review and assurance and will be available for Overview and Scrutiny Committees as 
part of their Forward Work Programmes. 
 
The report provides managerial assessment as an overview of the key messages 
within the report and then provides evidence and data to inform that assessment 
from the following sources: 

• Performance Targets 

• Monitoring of Key Actions from the Service Plan  

• Improvement Plan Monitoring 

• Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges 

• Internal and External regulatory reports  

• Customer satisfaction and feedback 

• Awards and accreditations 

• Resource Management (HR, ICT, Finance, Assets) 

Key Notes 

� The use of key note boxes is to highlight areas of interest or to 
respond specifically to enquiries from previous reports. 

Page 19



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 2 of 39 

Record of Amendments 

 

Date Amendment Amended by 

05/11/12 Draft report for review by Head of Service. Simon Abbott 

13/11/12 Amendments requested by Head of Service Simon Abbott 

   

 

Page 20



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 3 of 39 

Document Contents 

The report contains the following sections: 
 

Foreword & Summary Sections 

1 Foreword 
 

This section contains an executive summary of key information 
for the Housing Service. 
 
This foreword will also highlight (where relevant) emerging risks 
that need to be considered as new SARCs and signpost 
readers to supporting commentary where necessary with in the 
detailed sections for the service areas. 

2 Summaries This section presents a summary progress for each of the 
following: 

• Improvement Plan 

• Performance and Outcome Indicators 

• Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges (SARCs) 

• Service Plan 

Detail Sections  

3-9 Service Area 
Information 

A section for each area will be provided for service areas where 
the summary shows items off-track.  Sections may also be 
included for those areas to report progress and risks on items 
not included in the summary.  

Appendices  

Appendix A 
Performance 
Graphs 

Performance graphs for main indicators are shown in this 
appendix.  Only performance graphs showing a red or amber 
status will be included in the detail sections where explanation 
of issues affecting performance can be detailed. 

Appendix B 
Supplementary 
Data 

Supplementary data such as demand profiles will be contained 
in this section when required. 

Page 21



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 4 of 39 

1 Foreword 

Report highlights for this quarter are the following items: 
 

Rent Collection It is pleasing to see that the work carried out by the 
dedicated income team is improving rent collection with 
the outturn of the rent collected (HLS/006a) showing as 
green for the second consecutive quarter.  Work is also 
being undertaken to reduce the current tenant arrears 
and the outturn of this figure reflects the improvements in 
this area. 
 
The Income Team has introduced the Welsh Water 
Assist Scheme for low income families and tenants who 
suffer from certain medical conditions.  The scheme can 
reduce the combined water and sewer charges by over 
58% for some households 

Capital Works It is pleasing to report that the kitchen replacement 
programme is on track with 432 properties out of the 922 
budgeted for this year now completed. 
 
The Bathroom contract has provision for 56 properties 
this year. Surveys have been completed and the plan is 
to start on site in November.  It is estimated that these 
will be completed ahead of the end of the financial year.  

Repairs Progress has been made in all areas of responsive 
repairs and these are reflected in the performance 
figures this quarter.  The backlog of repairs has now 
been completed. There has been reclassification of 
some of the repairs backlog to “planned other” where 
replacement or renewal is appropriate.  There has been 
an additional £250k assigned to this year capital 
programme to allow these works to be started. 

Lean Reviews Building on the success of previous lean reviews a new 
cohort of staff has been trained with two new lean 
reviews scheduled for Q3 focussed firstly on the 
customer interface in repairs and the second on former 
tenant arrears. The new practitioners will be supported 
by staff from previous reviews. 

Performance Support New initiatives to build a performance culture across all 
teams and all levels of the service are currently being 
implemented to ensure all staff members are focused on 
performance and service improvement.  Activity in this 
area will be used to create management dashboards and 
move us towards benchmarking against other authorities 
and housing associations in our ongoing goal to perform 
in the top quartile. 

Page 22



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 5 of 39 

CBASS  
(Warden Service) 

The rollout of the warden service is progressing well with 
six hub offices now open and three more in progress.  
The feedback from members visiting the offices has been 
encouraging.   

Homelessness Pressure continues to build in this area and the four 
generic officers have to undertake effective preventative 
measures to avoid household becoming homeless. 
Households are presenting with increasingly complex 
issues, and this has an impact on the amount of time 
taken in order to achieve a successful outcome and 
prevent homelessness. 
 
It is however impossible to prevent homelessness in 
every case, and it is expected that the use of Bed & 
Breakfast accommodation will increase despite efforts to 
minimise this. 
 
There has been a significant drop in the number of days 
taken to discharge our homeless duty, however this is 
due to the type of household we have been able to find 
permanent accommodation for during this quarter. 

Welfare Reform & 
Rental Income 

The potential impact of housing benefit reforms that 
threaten the ability of council tenants to pay their rent is 
proactively being addressed through a comprehensive 
programme of tenant engagement and targeted advice 
and support.  Early November will see an all service 
mastermind group being used to review, validate and 
enhance the approach to the mitigation of the threat to 
rental income.   

 

Page 23



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 6 of 39 

2 Summaries 

2.1 Improvement Plan 

The following shows a summary of progress on the areas of the authority’s 
improvement plan undertaken by Housing Services.  Commentary will be provided for 
any areas showing a Red or Amber status in the detail sections. 

RAG Status for Improvement Plans 

RAG Progress Outcome 

 

Limited Progress - delay in scheduled 
activity; not on track 

Low - lower level of confidence in the 
achievement of outcome(s) 

 

Satisfactory Progress - some delay in 
scheduled activity, but broadly on track 

Medium - uncertain level of confidence 
in the achievement of the outcome(s) 

 

Good Progress - activities completed 
on schedule, on track 

High - full confidence in the 
achievement of the outcome(s) 

 

Council Priority Target 
Date 

Progress 
RAG 

Outcome 
Confidence 

Commentary 

7. To promote independent, healthy and fulfilled living in the community with the 
highest quality personalised and supportive social and health care services 

7.6 Modernise the warden 
service 

March 
2012 

 
G 

 

 
G 

 

Completed. 

8 To meet housing need in the County and to work with partners to ensure a 
sufficient supply of quality and affordable homes and housing services in the social , 
mixed tenure and private sector housing markets 

8.1 Lead the Deeside 
Housing Renewal Area 
programme (also 5) 

March 
2021 

 
G 

 

 
G 

 

 

8.2 Further improve the 
Council's housing 
management and housing 
repairs service 

On-going  
G 

 

 
G 

 

 

8.3 Increase the supply of 
affordable housing for first 
time buyers and people with 
special needs as a priority  

March 
2021 
 

 
A 

 

 
A 

 

Toolkit in this area 
is working well but 
needs to be 
documented. 

8.4 Extend the range of 
options in private sector 
housing 

TBC  
A 

 

 
G 

 

 

8.5 Develop a regional 
housing register and 
common allocations policy 

April 
2013 

 
A 

 
 

 
G 

 

Participation in the 
regional project is 
continuing. 

G 

A 

R 

Page 24



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 7 of 39 

2.2 Performance and Outcome Indicators 

The status of the indicators are summarised for this quarter below:  
 

RAG Description This Quarter 

 
Target missed 1 

 
Target missed but with in acceptable range 7 

 
Target achieved or exceeded 5 

 
Graphs and commentary will be offered in the relevant detail section for only those 
indicators shown with a RAG status of either Amber or Red.  Graphs for all indicators 
are included in Appendix A – Performance Graphs.  An asterisk (*) indicates that the 
indicator is an improvement target. 
 

Community Support Services 

Indicator 
Annual 
Target 

Q1 
Outturn 

Q1 
Target 

Q2 
Outturn RAG Change 

HHA/002 
Timelessness of 
discharging 
homelessness duty 

220 
days 

163  
days 

220 
days 

55.36 
days 

 
G 

 

Improved 

HHA/008 
Homelessness 
presentations 
decided within 33 
days. 

90% 96.55% 90% 96.97%  
G 

 

Improved 

HHA/016 
Average number of 
days families with 
children spent in 
B&B 

7 days 16.6 days 7 days 34 days  
R 

 

Downturn 
see page 26 

HHA/017A 
Average number of 
days all homeless 
households spent 
in B&B 

25 
days 

26.70 
days 

25 
days 

30.81 
days 

 
A 

 

Downturn 
see page 27 

HHA/017B 
Average number of 
days all homeless 
households spent 
in other temporary 
accommodation 

280 
days 

199.13 
days 

280 
days 

262.60 
days 

 
G 

 

Downturn 

G 

A 

R 

Page 25



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 8 of 39 

 

Housing Neighbourhood Management 
(these indicators relate to section 8.2 of the Improvement Plan) 

Indicator 
Annual 
Target 

Q1 
Outturn 

Q1 
Target 

Q2 
Outturn RAG Change 

HLS/006a* 
Rent Collection, 
Permanent 
Accommodation 

97.50% 96.29% 86.00% 96.38%  
G 

 

Improved 

HLS/012a 
Current tenant rent 
arrears 

3.00% 3.98% 3.9% 4.20%  
A 

 

Downturn 
see page 17 

HLS/013* 
Percentage rent 
loss due to empty 
property 

2.00% 2.20% 2.00% 2.08%  
A 

 

Improved 
see page 19 

HLS/014* 
Letting Times 

42.00  
days 

44.10 
days 

42.00  
days 

50.29 
days 

 
A 

 

Declined 
see page 20 

Housing Asset Management 
(these indicators relate to section 8.2 of the Improvement Plan) 

Indicator 
Annual 
Target 

Q1 
Outturn 

Q1 
Target 

Q2 
Outturn RAG Change 

HLS/10a 
Emergency repairs 

0.50 
days 

0.55 
days 

0.50 
days 

0.56  
days 

 
A 

 

Downturn 
see page 23 

HLS/10b 
Urgent Repairs 

8.50 
days 

8.87 days 8.50 
days 

8.08 
days 

 
G 

 

Improved 

HLS/10c* 
Non-urgent repairs 

35.00  
days 

82.16 
days 

35.00 
days 

43.63 
days 

 
A 

 

Improved see 
page 24 

HPMM8 
Percentage of gas 
installations with a 
valid safety 
certificate 

99.00% 99.20% 99.00% 98.80%  
A 

 

Downturn 
see page 24 
 

 
 

Page 26



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 9 of 39 

2.3 Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges (SARCs) 

The table below summarises the position of SARCs at the end of the reporting 
period. 
 

RAG Description 

 
High Risk 

 
Medium Risk 

 
Low Risk 

 
Commentary will be offered in the relevant detail section for only those SARCS that: 

• Are showing a Red RAG status 

• Where the RAG status has changed since the last reporting period 

• Where the Green Predictive Date has changed since the last reporting period 

• Where there has been considerable change or additions of secondary risks 
and activity 

 

SARC 
Previous 
Status 

Current 
Status 

Green 
Predictive 

CD08 
Connah’s Quay, Shotton And Queensferry 
Housing Renewal Area 

 
A 

 

 
A 

 
March 
2020 

CD12b 
Housing Management 

 
A 

 

 
A 

 
TBC 

CD12c 
Housing Repairs And Maintenance Services 

 
A 

 

 
A 

 
April 2013 

CD12e 
Sheltered Housing 

 
A 

 

 
A 

 

November 
2013 

CD38 
Welfare Reform 
(This is a corporate risk. Whilst work is 
progressing against the SARC and the 
Welfare Reform Strategy the certainty of the 
risk and forecasted severity of its impact 
dictates that this will continue to be shown 
as red for foreseeable future.) 

 
R 

 

 
R 

 

TBC 

 
Please note that following that some of the SARCs have been omitted from the table 
above due to the change risks since their original draft.  These are as follows: 

G 

A 

R 

Page 27



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 10 of 39 

 

CL04 
Affordable Housing 

The overall risk in this area remains consistent however 
the issues around the SARC have considerably changed 
since its original draft.  Time is being taken to review and 
refresh the SARC.  The refreshed SARC will be 
considered by both DMT and CMT and reintroduced in 
Q3 reporting. 

CD12a 
Housing Strategy 

The original overall risk for this area pre-dated the 
formation of the Housing Strategy Team which has now 
been firmly embedded.  More pertinent risks now exist 
and will be subject to a new SARC.  The new SARC will 
be considered by both DMT and CMT and introduced in 
Q3 reporting. 

CD12d 
Homelessness 

This SARC needs to be reconsidered in light with the 
risks posed by the current economic climate and welfare 
reform.  The refreshed SARC will be considered by both 
DMT and CMT and reintroduced in Q3 reporting. 

 

Page 28



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 11 of 39 

2.4 Service Plan 

Progress has been made in all areas of the service plan.  The following table shows 
which areas have incurred slippage or have been subject to a revised timetable and 
references the page number of commentary where applicable: 
 

Improvement Area On Track Commentary 

Service Wide   

1a Staff Management �  

1b Customer Focussed Service �  

Neighbourhood Housing Management   

2a Quality of Life in Neighbourhoods � See page 21 

2b Maximisation of Rental Income On-hold Pending the start of  
the new manager 

2c Best use of Housing Stock �  

2d Regional Housing Register �  

2e Customer Involvement in Neighbourhood 
Management 

�  

Housing Asset Maintenance   

3a Implement Staff Restructure Revised See page 24 

3b Improve Reputation and Performance of 
Repairs Service 

�  

3c Develop Information on Our  Housing 
Stock 

�  

3d Improve the Quality of Our Housing 
Stock 

�  

3e Customer Involvement in Housing Asset 
Management 

�  

Community Support Services   

4a Expanding Community Based Support 
Services 

�  

4b Homelessness & Advice Services � See page 29 

4c Service Review � See page 27 

4d Customer Involvement in Community 
Support Services 

�  

Page 29



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 12 of 39 

 

Housing Renewal   

5a Empty Homes �  

5b Private Sector Housing Strategy �  

5c Develop the Capacity for Renewal 
Services 

�  

5d Customer Involvement in Housing 
Renewal 

�  

Housing Strategy   

6a Local Housing Strategy �  

6b Affordable Housing � See page 33 

6c Performance Support �  

6d Business Systems �  

6e Customer Involvement in Housing 
Strategy 

� See page 33 

 

Page 30



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 13 of 39 

3 People & Customer Indicators 

3.1 Sickness & Absence 

Overall absence for Housing Services has increased from 5.31% to 5.85% in Q2 
giving an average 3.33 FTE (full time employee) days lost in comparison to 3.03 days 
in Q1.  The same quarter last year also stood at 3.3 FTE days. 
 
The following table gives a breakdown by service area comparing Q2 2012/13 to Q2 
2011/12: 

 Q2 2011/12 Q2 2012/13  

Service Area % Days % Days Change 

Community Support Services 6.88% 3.90 4.90% 2.79  Improved 

Housing Management 8.41% 4.60 5.10% 2.91 Improved 

Housing Asset Management 5.41% 3.06 6.58% 3.75 Declined 

Housing Renewal 0.45% 0.26 6.54% 3.73 Declined 

Housing Strategy 0.00% 0.26 0.70% 0.40 Declined 

 
The analysis of each service area is as follows: 

Community Support Services 

The management team have been focusing on the Attendance at Work policy and 
especially within the warden service, steps have been successfully taken to return 
employees to work who were on long term sick. The manager has also taken a 
proactive role in trying to deal with absence issues quickly before they escalate. 

Housing Asset Management 

This section has gained employees from another section within the directorate  and 
an employee on long term sick, this coupled with other employees on long term sick 
within the quarter has had a significant impact on the absence figures. The figures 
have substantially increased from the last quarter and the same quarter last year.   
 
On a positive note management have been actively carrying out all aspects of the 
Attendance at Work policy with several Stage 1 Capability meetings taken place 
within the quarter.   The short term absence for the department has seen a 
noteworthy decrease with a reduction in employees hitting the absence triggers. 

Housing Renewal 

Historically this department has had low absence levels; however this quarter shows 
an increase in the absence figures from the last quarter and the comparable quarter 
last year.   

Housing Strategy 

Historically absence in this team is normally low however there has been an increase 
in this quarter from 0.00% in quarter 1 to 0.70% in quarter 2 which is still low and if 
sustained would bring the teams annual absence rate well below the corporate 
threshold.   

Page 31



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 14 of 39 

Housing Management 

There has been a noteworthy decease in absence levels here, with a reduction from 
5.91% in quarter 1 to 5.10% in quarter 2.  More significantly from quarter 2 last year 
there has been a decrease from 8.41% to 5.10%.  Whilst there has been an 
employee on long term sick, there has been a reduction in employees hitting the 
triggers.  This could be attributed to the positive impact on staff now that the Service 
Review has been fully implemented and bedded in. 

Conclusion 

Whilst overall, absence levels have increased within Housing Services, there has 
been 2 noteworthy decreases in absence levels from Housing Management and 
Community Support Services.  Managers are continuing to follow the “Attendance at 
Work Policy” and dealing with potential long term sickness early on.  If absence 
continues in this way, housing will have a absence rate of 5.58% and 12.72 FTE 
Days Lost at the end of the year, compared to the Council target of 9.8 FTE Days 
Lost. 
 
The 100% Attendance at Work awards have contributed towards a reduction in short 
term sickness, however further progress needs to be made with Long Term Sickness 
and managers dealing with long term sickness quickly.   
 
Following a request from Overview and Scrutiny the absence figures for Housing 
were looked at again for quarter 1 and analysed between long term and short term 
sick. The results were that 70% of absence in Housing for quarter 1 was long term 
and 30% short term, it would appear this trend has continued for quarter 2.   

Page 32



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 15 of 39 

3.2 Training & Appraisals 

For the first 6 months of 2012-2013 Housing Services staff undertook 499 days of 
training (compared to 374 days for the same period – 2011-2012). 
 
The emphasis has changed this year with more training days taken up delivering 
Management Qualifications (internally through Corporate Training) and Health & 
Safety training, in particular for Housing Asset Management.  Training days devoted 
to Qualifications continues to reduce in line with our training strategy.   
 
The following qualifications are currently being undertaken: 
 

1 x FdSc Housing Studies 

1 x FdSc Supported Housing 

1 x FdSc Applied Computing 
2 x BA (Hons) Advice Studied (Distance Learning) 
2 x BSc (Hons) Housing Studies 
7 x NVQ Level 2 - Customer Service 
1 x NVQ Level 3 – Management 
2 x NVQ Level 3 – Business Admin 
1 x QCF Level 4 – Customer Service 
16 x Technical Certificate Level 2 – Multi-tasking Maintenance 
 
In the 12 months between 1 October 2011 and 30 September 2012, 73% of staff had 
appraisals.  This has been an area of focus of for this quarter and represents and 
shows a significant improvement on the 50% reported in quarter 1.   
 
The breakdown for each team is as follows: 

Service Area Complete No Due % Completed 

Senior Management Team 7 7 100% 

NHM East 9 9 100% 

NHM North 9 11 82% 

NHM South 12 12 100% 

Income Team 6 6 100% 

Housing Asset Management 79 145 54% 

Community Support Services 19 19 100% 

Housing Renewal 13 16 81% 

Housing Strategy 2 3 67% 

CBASS (Warden Service) 42 42 100% 

Total 198 270 73% 

 
It is pleasing to see from the breakdown that the increased focus in this area has 
improved outturns across all teams with 60% of all teams achieving 100%. This will 
continue to remain an area of focus for managers and team leaders. 
 Page 33



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 16 of 39 

3.3 Customer involvement 

Customer involvement in shaping our services remains a priority for focus.  Most 
teams across of the service now have their own customer involvement plan to ensure 
our varied range of customers are put at the heart of our services.  
 
October will see our Autumn Tenants Conference which unlike previous conferences 
will see it split across two sessions, one in the afternoon and one in the evening to 
encourage a wider range of our tenants to attend. 
 
For the first time a tenant representative has been involved in a lean review to bring a 
customer prospective directly into process reviews to improve services for our 
tenants.  Other initiatives have seen the reality checker groups undertaking a review 
of repairs and tenant involvement in interviewing potential contractors for the capital 
works programme. 
 
Customer involvement is important but for the improvement it can bring to the quality 
of services. It is hoped that by engaging customers in these projects the service will 
be able to raise satisfaction levels, improve standards and deliver a more efficient 
service. 

3.4 Complaints 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

% On-time 70.00% 58.70%

% Target 80.00% 80.00% 80.00% 80.00%

On-time  21  27 

Complaints  30  46 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Target 80%

 
 
It is disappointing to see a downturn of the complaints handled in time this quarter 
compared to the Q1 outturn. 
 
Analysis of the complaints data shows the following: 

• 58.70% (27/46) of complaints were handled within the 10 day turnaround in Q2 

• There is a downturn in performance from 70% last quarter and is considerably 
less than the 80% target 

• Repairs continue to be the highest source of complaints with 30 complaints 
(65.22%) 

• Only 60% (18) of the repairs complaints were handled on-time. 
 
This will be an area of increased focus for Q3. 

Page 34



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 17 of 39 

4 Neighbourhood Management 

4.1 Performance Commentary 

The targets (with the exception of HLS/006a) were not met for the following indicators 
for Neighbourhood Management: 
 

 
A 

 

HLS/012a 
Current tenant rent arrears 

 
A 

 

HLS/013 
Percentage rent loss due to empty property 

 
A 

 

HLS/014 
Letting Times 

 

Supporting information for these indicators is provided below: 

HLS/012a Current tenant rent arrears 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

% Arrears 4.52% 4.26% 3.63% 3.98% 4.20%

Target 3.70% 3.60% 3.00% 3.60% 3.90%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual Target  3% & Q2 Target 3.9%

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The quarter 2 performance outturn, of 4.2% compares well with the Q2 2010/11 
figure of 4.52% showing a considerable improvement on last years position at this 
time. 
 
As with Quarter 1 12.13, the direct debit payment falls into week 27.  The banded 
table below shows the wk27 comparison to give a clearer understanding of the rent 
arrears position.  Overall the last 12 months arrears have reduced by almost £106K 
 

Arrears 
band 
£’s 

Accounts in 
Arrears Q2 

(Wk27) 11/12 

Accounts in 
Arrears Q2 

(Wk27) 12/13 

Total 
Outstanding 
Q2 (Wk27) 

11/12 

Total 
Outstanding 
Q2 (Wk27) 

12/13 

0-300 3266 3134 294,183 287,535 

300-600 522 492 218,616 209,688 

600-1000 284 248 219,533 190,951 Page 35



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 18 of 39 

1000-2000 253 222 344,479 303,947 

2000-3000 80 77 194,519 184,426 

3000-4000 21 18 72,641 59,273 

4000-5000 4 6 16,952 26,440 

5000-6000 3 3 16,472 15,721 

6000-7000 1 0 6,358  

Grand Total 4434 4200 1,383,753 1,277,981 

 
The overall banding table shows that: 

• The overall number of accounts in arrears has continued to reduce. 

• The number of accounts owing less than £1,000 has reduced. 

• The number of accounts over £1,000 has reduced. 
 
Following training from Welsh Water the Income Team has introduced the Welsh 
Water Assist Scheme for low income families and tenants who suffer from certain 
medical conditions.  The scheme reduces the combined water and sewer charges to 
£5.00 per week (most tenants will normally pay between £9 and £12 per week.)   
There are 100 tenants currently on the scheme.  This is a significant reduction for 
these households. 
 
The Income Team are continuing to concentrate on two particular areas during 
2012/13: 

• Continuing the good work in tackling low level rent arrears cases; 

• Reducing the number of arrears cases owing over £1k. 
 
As contained within the 2011/12 Service Plan, work is continuing with the 
Procurement Unit to tender for an outside collection agency to recover former tenant 
rent arrears.  This will be subject to a lean review during Q3 to confirm the business 
case for the outsourcing and map out our internal procedures for doing so. 
 
A service wide mastermind group is being established in November to plan a co-
ordinated approach to mitigating the impact of Welfare Reform on both our tenants 
and their ability to pay their rent.  The outcomes of this will be reported in the Q3 
report. 
 
Overall analysis of the figures shows that performance is expected to continue 
steadily improving through Q3 and Q4. 

Page 36



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 19 of 39 

HLS/013 Percentage rent loss due to empty property  

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

% Rent Loss 2.69% 2.54% 2.32% 2.20% 2.08%

Target 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 2.0%

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement.  

 
A 

 
 
 
 
 

 
It is pleasing to see that the quarter 2 performance shows continued and sustainable 
improvement against last years quarterly figures bringing us closer to our annual 
target of 2%.  
 
The table below shows that there were a total of 146 lets for Q2 12/13, which is an 
increase when compared to the previous quarter (Q1) total lets of 134.  
 

 Quarter Became vacant No of lets 

Q2 11/12 126 125 

Q3 11/12 137 160 

Q4 11/12 136 149 

Q1 12/13 147 134 

Q2 12/13 146 148 

 
The number of properties let in the past 12 months (591) exceeds those that became 
vacant (566.)  It is clear that to continue improving performance in void rent loss and 
to ultimately reach the year end target set of 2%, the number of lets need to be at a 
higher level than the number of new voids for the remainder of the year.  Significant 
management effort is focused on ensuring that continuous improvement is sustained 
in this area. 

Page 37



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 20 of 39 

HLS/014 Letting Times  

0

20

40

60

80

100

Avg Days 83.81 62.27 51.59 44.10 50.29

Target 42.00 42.00 42.00 42.00 42.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual & QuarterlyTarget 42 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement.  

 
A 

 
 
 
 
 

 
It is disappointing to see a downturn of performance in this area following quarter on 
quarter improvement in this area. 
 
The table below shows the numbers of days (rounded) for each stage of the letting 
process.   
 

Period Waiting Days Work Days Letting Days 

Q4 2010/11 24 32 22 

Q1 2011/12 30 30 15 

Q2 2011/12 37 31 16 

Q3 2011/12 25 26 11 

Q4 2011/12 18 22 11 

Q1 2012/13 15 21 7 

Q2 2012/13 14 21 10 

 
Despite a 1 day improvement in the waiting time and the work time sustained, the 
letting times indicate a downturn of 3 days showing the area which has caused the 
overall downturn in the indicator of 50.29 days. 
 
The reason for increase of letting days has been investigated and has revealed a 
number of lets which have been exceptionally long due to delays caused by medical 
issues of tenants.  There were 6 where tenants were in hospital when been allocated 
a property delaying the start date of the tenancy. The most severe of these cases 
was 173 days.  A further 4 lets have been delayed waiting whilst waiting for 
assessment by Occupation Therapists.  It has been calculated that if these 
exceptions were removed from the calculations that we would have sustained the 7 
days letting period. 
 
It will be a focus of Neighbourhood Housing Managers to work with our colleagues in 
social services to find a reasonable solution for these cases that balances the needs 
of the tenants with that of the service’s need to let properties in a tight timeframe. 

Page 38



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 21 of 39 

 
The following graph shows that the issues documented above have impacted on all 
classifications of void: 

0

30

60

90

120

150

V4 91.40

V3 112.62 76.56 64.92 60.76 65.18

V2 93.41 58.03 54.70 41.47 51.64

V1 39.60 35.59 35.47 31.45 35.04

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

V3 £4,000 plus

V2 £1,501 to £3,999

V1 less than £1,500

 
 
The outturn figures exclude the V4 category of properties that cost over £6k to repair 
as these are classed as refurbishments.  There have been 10 such properties let 
during Q2. These properties will be reflected in the graph from Q3 onwards. 
 
V2 properties (costing between £1501 and £3,999 to repair) were again the biggest 
group in Q2 with 50 properties. 
 
Weekly meetings are being arranged between Asset Management and 
Neighbourhood Housing Management to give a greater priority to addressing 
performance blockages.  In addition monthly meetings will be held by the Head of 
Service. 

4.2 Service Plan Updates 

Progress is being made in line with the service plan in this area.  Two areas have 
been delayed as follows: 

Expand the tenant participation team to three officers as per the 
commitment in the Choices Document. 

The Choices document commits the Council to increasing the number of officers 
responsible for tenant participation (from 1 to 3). Job descriptions have been 
designed for the following: 

• Customer Involvement Assistant (engagement of young people) 

• Customer Liaison Officer (capital programme)   
 
Delays for the recruitment of staff are attributed to the Job Evaluation Process, which 
is taking longer than anticipated due to the high demands on the Job Evaluation 
Panel.  
 
It is anticipated that the new posts will be filled by January 2013.  
 

Page 39



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 22 of 39 

Improve ASB service by implementing new procedures and IT system. 

The original IT package for managing anti social behaviour (Contact Management) 
presented to the service by CAPITA was unable to meet the demands of the service.  
 
CAPITA will be presenting a new “in development” ASB module to us for 
consideration in October.  The system is expected to be available January 2013. 

4.3 Internal and External Regulatory Reports 

No reports for this section. 

Page 40



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 23 of 39 

5 Housing Asset Maintenance  

5.1 Performance Commentary 

It is pleasing to note that performance in the urgent category has improved this 
quarter. Targets were not met for the following indicators for Housing Asset 
Management: 
 

 
A 

 

HLS/10a 
Emergency repairs 

 
A 

 

HLS/10c 
Non-urgent repairs 

 
A 

 

HPMM8 
Percentage of gas installations with a valid safety certificate 

 
Supporting information for these indicators is provided below: 

HLS/10a Emergency Repairs 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

Avg Days 0.29 0.31 0.48 0.55 0.56

Target 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 0.50 

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 

 
Quarter 2 overall is a positive improvement for the Housing Asset Service in terms of 
performance. The average repair time for Emergency Repairs is slightly above the 
0.5 day target. The main reasons for this are data transfer to PDA’s and additional 
work being raised on Emergency job tickets. If data transfer to PDA’s is not 
immediate or a device is in an area of no signal this has an impact on the 
performance particularly in the emergency category. Analysis on all data and 
categories is now taking place to ensure that additional works are raised on separate 
works instructions and also to verify correct classification of jobs. 
 

Page 41



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 24 of 39 

HLS/10c Non-urgent repairs 

0.00

20.00

40.00

60.00

80.00

100.00

Avg Days 68.53 62.27 56.42 82.16 43.63

Target 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 35 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 

 
Non-urgent repairs have improved significantly over the quarter reducing from 82.16 
to 43.63 days. A large amount of older jobs were completed in quarter 1 as we 
continued to reduce the repairs backlog which resulted in a significant impact on the 
performance figures. As these older jobs have now been completed the results can 
be seen in the significant improvement during this quarter. The outturn in quarter 2 is 
the best performance in this category for at least 3 years. Work now continues to 
effectively manage jobs in this category and to improve performance on inspections 
relating to non-urgent repairs. 

HPMM8 Percentage of gas installations with a valid safety certificate 

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

105%

Done vs Due 100.00% 97.44% 99.35% 99.20% 98.80%

Target 99.00% 99.00% 99.00% 99.00% 99.00%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 99%

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 

 
The target has been narrowly missed for this indicator however all properties due a 
service were visited on-time and are subject to our no-access procedures. 

5.2 Service Plan Updates 

The new Interim Asset Manager has taken the opportunity to review current and 
planned work streams in order to assess the current position and plan effectively to 

Page 42



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 25 of 39 

realise the most improvements for the service over future months and the long term. 
There are a significant amount of projects underway and planned for the service and 
the Asset Manager is keen to ensure that each project is managed and embedded 
effectively as it is only then that the projects will be a success and deliver the most 
benefits to the service.  

5.3 Internal and External Regulatory Reports 

No reports for this section. 

Page 43



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 26 of 39 

6 Community Support Services 

6.1 Performance Commentary  

It is pleasing to see despite both the increased demand for accommodation and the 
decreased availability of suitable and affordable accommodation in the private rented 
sector that we are managing to maintain a Green RAG status on the majority of our 
indicators.  Unfortunately the following indicators are a casualty of the current 
economic climate this quarter: 
 

 
R 

 

HHA/016 
Average number of days families with children spent in B&B 

 
A 

 

HHA/017A  
Average number of days all homeless households spent in 
B&B 

HHA/016 Average number of days families with children spent in B&B 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Avg Days 13.60 11.80 4.00 16.60 34.00

Target 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarter Target 7 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
R 

 
 
 
 

 
During this quarter 7 households with children were accommodated in B&B.  The 
number of days have increased significantly owing to the fact that we had to 
accommodate two households that were Flintshire County Councils tenants who 
were fleeing violence.  Both families were too large to access refuge accommodation 
therefore both families had to be accommodated for a total of 66 days until the 
Neighbourhood Management Team resolved the issues. 

Page 44



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 27 of 39 

HHA/017a Average number of days all homeless households spent in 
B&B 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Avg Days 6.80 16.05 12.22 26.70 30.81

Target 21.00 21.00 21.00 25.00 25.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarter Target 25 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 
 
 

 
This quarter 27 households were placed in B&B with 20 of those being single people. 
Unfortunately this client group is also the most difficult to rehouse due to a lack of 
suitable and affordable single person accommodation. 

6.2 Service Plans 

Progress is being made in line with the service plan in this area with the exception of: 

4c Service Review 

Plans for the review of this service area have been delayed to the departure of two 
Senior Managers and the outcomes of the Development & Resources Restructure 
consultation. 

6.3 Internal and External Regulatory Reports 

No reports for this section. 

Page 45



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 28 of 39 

7 Income Maximisation Unit 

7.1 General Update 

Successes 

• The social security benefits and tax credits income generated for residents by 

successful welfare rights interventions totalled £631,000.  This figure comprises of 

£521,000 on-going annual payments and £110,000 one-off lump sum payments. 

(In the first six months of the current financial year the welfare rights team have 

generated £1.2 million in benefit gains for residents.) 

• Over 462 Flintshire residents received specialist advice and assistance from a 

welfare rights worker with their welfare benefit and/or tax credit problem. Of these 

residents, 64 received advice and representation in connection with appealing an 

adverse decision on their benefit entitlement before a First-Tier Tribunal.   

• Customer feedback received from residents who accessed the service shows that 

91% view the caseworker service as excellent and 97% said they would 

recommend the Welfare Rights Unit to someone else if they needed advice and 

assistance with welfare benefit problems. 

Challenges 

• Impacts of the Welfare Reform Act 2012 - the specialist caseworker service is 

struggling to balance the demand from residents who are experiencing benefit 

problems and the request to provide support to initiatives that are targeting 

groups of residents who are experiencing changes to their welfare benefit 

entitlement, e.g. the 1,200 FCC tenants impacted by the bedroom tax, etc. 

• Increased Government funding to the Court Service to reduce the UK wide 

backlog of appeals – the specialist caseworker service, due to the increasing 

number of requests from residents for assistance with appealing adverse 

decisions, is struggling to gather medical/other supporting evidence and prepare 

the appellant’s submission, etc, before the appeal is listed for hearing by the 

Court Service.  

Future 

• Maximising the use of advice resources within internal/external services - the 

development of initiatives being progressed by the Flintshire Advice Management 

Board, e.g., ‘Single Access Gateway’, will promote and enable effective 

partnership working amongst service providers and increase their ability to meet 

more of the demands for advice and support from residents. 

Page 46



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 29 of 39 

• Undertake a lean review of the Advice and Homelessness service – improving the 

journey of customers who access the caseworker service and developing an 

integrated database that supports the delivery of the caseworker service.  

Service Plan Updates 

4b Advice & Homelessness Service 

Progress is being made on work streams to mitigate the effects of Welfare Reform 
across the authority, including: 
   

• All FCC tenants under occupying their homes have been identified and will be 
offered appropriate advice and support to address issues that the reduction in 
their housing benefit entitlement will create. 

• Proactive partnership working with the North Wales Credit Union to raise 
awareness of their financial services and to promote financial capability 
throughout the County. 

 

Page 47



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 30 of 39 

8 Housing Renewal 

8.1 General Update 

The Housing Renewal area continues to build on the good work delivered during the 
last Quarter.  

Countywide Home Repair and Renovations 

The Service continues to deliver home repair and renovation support across the 
County.  During this quarter 28 people came forward requiring assistance.  14 
property surveys were undertaken and scheduled work will now be taken forward for 
loan support.  A total of 26 loans were completed during this quarter, with a work 
value of £128,637.  The loans continue to provide vital support to those homeowners 
who cannot fund the cost of repairs and improvements to their homes. It also 
supports small local contractors. 
 
The Service has now approved loan applications which total the budget available for 
12/13.  Therefore, whilst work already approved will continue, regrettably no further 
loans will be approved until the new financial year 13/14. An exception to this will be 
repayment loans, available through the Council’s loans administrator Street UK, as 
this offers the Council the opportunity to use the revolving nature of the fund to offer 
some support on an ongoing basis.  The Service has placed £50K with the 
administrator for this purpose.  It is hoped that a further expansion of this Service in 
13/14 will make the support more sustainable, given the ongoing pressures capital 
funding. 

Delivery of Disabled Adaptations 

Performance in this area continues to improve, with the average number of days from 
referral to Housing Renewal to completion on site remaining at 98 days, compared to 
240 days in quarter 2 of last year 11/12. This improvement in performance is to be 
welcomed and will begin to evidence within the national strategic indicator over time.  
However, with increased throughput comes increased cost.  The Service has had to 
control cost carefully and ensure that sufficient budget is allocated to meet demand.  
Across the housing renewal capital programme a current shortfall of £128K is 
forecast and the Service has identified areas it can delay projects so as to ensure no 
impact on the DFG Service and no overspend on total budgets. 

Connah’s Quay, Shotton and Queensferry Renewal Area 

The existing Group Repair contract came to an end during Quarter 1, with a total of 
104 properties completed since work first began.  A tender has been put together for 
a new contractor to deliver the 2nd Phase of the Group repair scheme and to date 120 
of the 180 eligible properties have been surveyed.  A tender exercise was 
undertaken during Quarter 2 and completed in September.  Three companies were 
shortlisted for interview based upon their tender return.   
 
However, the company judged successful following the interview subsequently failed 
the Council’s financial appraisal of their business and we were not in a position to 
appoint them.  The 2nd and 3rd placed contractors at interview stage did not provide 
us with the confidence that they had the necessary skills and experience for 

Page 48



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 31 of 39 

appointment.  It has therefore been decided that a new open tender exercise will take 
place with view to appointment early in the new year.   

Community Energy Saving Programme (CESP) 

The energy efficiency measures being installed as part of Phase 2 of the CESP 
programme comprising Connah’s Quay and Greenfield continued in this Quarter.  A 
total of 40 new heating systems and 40 external wall insulations took place.  In 
support of the CESP programme two Arbed bids were submitted by the service for 
Hollywell Central and Mostyn.  The two bids were successful and levered in a further 
£303,166 to the Service, offering us an opportunity to further reduce the cost of work 
to homeowners.  All CESP works must be completed by the end of Quarter 3 before 
the introduction of a replacement funding mechanism.  This project is now used by 
Npower (our funder) as their promotional model and has been presented to the 
Scottish Government.  The Service is pleased that for every £1 of Council money 
spent on this programme, £5 has been levered in from other sources.  The Service 
would therefore seek to sustain investment in this area. 
 
Additional Energy Efficiency Work 
The Service received notification that its Arbed bid for Holywell Central had 
provisionally been accepted and meetings are taking place with Welsh government’s 
chosen contractor Wilmot Dixon to take the scheme forward.  The Scheme will 
operate on a similar basis to the CESP Scheme.  Flintshire has also been successful 
in its bid for Green Deal business case support in conjunction with Wrexham County 
Borough Council.  Welsh government are supporting the preparation of a business 
case to assess whether a financially sustainable model for the provision of Green 
Deal loans across North Wales is feasible.  Further information on this project will be 
provided in the Quarter 3 Performance Report. The energy efficiency work of the 
Service has been recognised, being shortlisted for a CIH Housing Award in the 
category of ‘Outstanding Leadership by a Local Authority.’ 

Empty Homes 

Welsh Government have finalised the arrangements for delivery of the national 
House into Homes Initiative during Quarter 1.  Funding of £10m is being provided for 
interest free loans across Wales, with the aim of returning 5000 long term vacant 
properties (across Wales) back in to use over the next 5 years.  The funding will be 
devolved across the 6 regions and as Members are aware, Flintshire has been asked 
to lead for North Wales region. This will involve the Housing Renewal Service 
managing a £2.4m recycable loan fund, which includes Flintshire’s share valued at 
£482K.  Flintshire submitted the first claim for £258K during the Quarter, which 
included a £150K claim for Flintshire. 
 
In terms of the scheme, Flintshire has now received expressions of interest from 10 
property owners, with total potential loans valued at £500K.  Those applications need 
to be assessed to ensure they meet the scheme criteria. However, assuming they do, 
Flintshire’s allocation is already more than committed and a waiting list will be 
prepared. 
 
Work is ongoing to enhance the empty homes service for the county.  A data 
cleansing exercise has seen all properties suspected as being empty across the 
county surveyed.  The actual number of properties identified as empty is 554, these 

Page 49



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 32 of 39 

are now subject to the empty homes procedures aimed at bringing them back into 
use. 
 
During this Quarter the new 3 stage letters have been prepared and will be sent out 
during Quarter 3.  These letters are an attempt to further engage with the owners of 
empty properties, offering encouragement and support in the initial letter, through to 
the threat of enforcement action in letter 3.  This will offer an opportunity, not only to 
further improve data on empty homes, but should act to find a solution for an 
increasing number.  On this basis a more challenging target will be set for returning 
empty homes in to use during the 13/14 financial year. 
 
Customer Service Excellence 
The Housing Service is seeking to provide excellent service to all its customers.  As 
part of this commitment the Housing Renewal Service is currently preparing to seek 
accreditation for the Customer Service Excellence Award.  This Government 
standard will be externally assessed and will give a particular focus to delivery, 
timeliness, information, professionalism and staff attitude.  Work is ongoing to 
compile evidence against the standard and it is hoped that the Service will be in a 
position to undergo the assessment in Quarter 4.  It is then envisaged that the 
Customer Service Excellence approach will be rolled out across the Housing Service. 

8.2 Service Plan Updates 

Progress is being made in line with the service plan in this area without exception. 

8.3 Internal and External Regulatory Reports 

No reports for this section. 

Page 50



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 33 of 39 

9 Housing Strategy 

9.1 General Update 

The following are brief updates on Housing Strategies main functions: 

Local Housing Strategy 

The new Local Housing Strategy has been completed and will inform the programme 
of support for a range of supporting strategies. 

Performance Support 

Plans to further enhance the Performance Support Role in housing continue.  This 
quarter has seen the formation of a new housing lean team to assist in the 
improvement of performance and services.  New initiatives for Q3 will include the 
introduction of service wide mastermind groups to pool the shared knowledge and 
skill base of staff across the service in dealing with problems and challenges as well 
as the first of a series of performance workshops aimed at developing a performance 
culture across the service. 

9.2 Service Plan Updates 

Progress is being made in line with the service plan in this area with the following 
exceptions: 

6b Affordable Housing 

The development of the Affordable Housing Strategy has been delayed whilst 
awaiting adoption of the Local Housing Strategy.  The first draft of the strategy is now 
expected in January 2013 and will include measures to inform robust monitoring of 
both housing delivery and the marketing activity for this area. 

6e Customer Involvement in Housing Strategy 

A formal plan will be put into place by Q3 for customer involvement.  Aims of the 
service area to engage its varied customer base this year are described below: 
 
Elected Members: 
Engagement with elected members will be centred on regular and on-going series of 
briefing seminars. These will be aimed at raising member’s awareness of current and 
emerging topic areas and will comprise a series of short presentations, given by key 
internal and external stakeholders, followed by a Q&A session. The intention for 
these sessions is to be informal and aimed at prompting discussion with members, 
leading to potentially more formalised working groups where policy may need to be 
formulated. 
 
Ongoing Activities: 
Two member seminars have been held (Empty Properties and Gypsies & Travellers). 
The programme of future sessions is included within the member’s calendar and will 
continue with briefings held on a six weekly cycle. 
 
External Stakeholders: 
Involvement of key external stakeholders will be conducted through the Flintshire 
Housing Partnership (FHP). These key stakeholders comprise RSLs, developers and Page 51



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 34 of 39 

representative bodies. The agenda of FHP meetings may be set by any of the 
participating organisations and in addition may influence the work programme of the 
sub-groups of the FHP. 
 
Ongoing Activities: 
The FHP meets quarterly. Following a self-assessment exercise a review of the 
terms of reference of the partnership will now be undertaken. 
 
Internal Stakeholder: 
Internal stakeholders can be classified into two principle groups: 
(a) Housing service areas where involvement primarily concerns engagement in the 

development of policy, strategy and engagement in responses to internal and 
external consultations, and 

(b) Directorates and service areas from outside the housing service area but within 
FCC. 

Involvement with these groups encompasses a range of different approaches, 
tailored appropriately to the topic or issue. 
 
Ongoing Activities: 
Current involvement has focused on the development of the Flintshire LHS, 
Affordable Housing Strategy, Empty Property Strategy and Homeless Prevention 
Strategies. Future activity will include preparing responses to current Welsh 
Government consultations 

9.3 Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges (SARCs) 

Housing Strategy has taken the opportunity to refresh the SARCs on Housing 
Strategy and Affordable Housing as part of an exercise to transform the SARCS to a 
new format recommended by Internal Audit. 

9.4 Internal and External Regulatory Reports 

No reports for this section. 

Page 52



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 35 of 39 

Appendix A – Performance Graphs 

HLS/006a* Rent Collection, Permanent Accommodation  

80.00%

84.00%

88.00%

92.00%

96.00%

100.00%

Collected 90.39% 93.45% 95.51% 96.29% 96.98%

Target 93.00% 96.00% 97.50% 86.00% 92.00%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual Target 97.5%, Q2 Target 92%

 
An upward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
 
 

HLS/012a Current tenant rent arrears 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

% Arrears 4.52% 4.26% 3.63% 3.98% 4.20%

Target 3.70% 3.60% 3.00% 3.60% 3.90%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual Target  3% & Q2 Target 3.9%

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 
 

HLS/013* Percentage rent loss due to empty property  

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

% Rent Loss 2.69% 2.54% 2.32% 2.20% 2.08%

Target 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 2.0%

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement.  

 
A 

 
 
 
 
 

G 

Page 53



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 36 of 39 

HLS/014* Letting Times  

0

20

40

60

80

100

Avg Days 83.81 62.27 51.59 44.10 50.29

Target 42.00 42.00 42.00 42.00 42.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual & QuarterlyTarget 42 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement.  

 
A 

 
 
 
 
 

HLS/10a Emergency Repairs 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

Avg Days 0.29 0.31 0.48 0.55 0.56

Target 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 0.50 

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 

HLS/10b Urgent Repairs 

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

Avg Days 8.10 8.40 9.31 8.87 8.08

Target 9.00 9.00 9.00 8.50 8.50

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 8.5 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
G 

Page 54



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 37 of 39 

HLS/10c* Non-urgent repairs 

0.00

20.00

40.00

60.00

80.00

100.00

Avg Days 68.53 62.27 56.42 82.16 43.63

Target 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00 35.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 35 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 

 

HPMM8 Percentage of gas installations with a valid safety certificate 

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

105%

Done vs Due 100.00% 97.44% 99.35% 99.20% 98.80%

Target 99.00% 99.00% 99.00% 99.00% 99.00%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 99%

 
An upward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 38 of 39 

HHA/002 Timeliness of discharging full homelessness duty 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Working Days 150.00 115.64 154.08 163.00 55.36

Target 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarterly Target 220 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
 
 
 

HHA/008 Homelessness presentations decided within target 

70%

80%

90%

100%

% in 33 days 94.74% 93.33% 85.29% 96.55% 96.97%

Target 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarter Target 90%

 
An upward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
 
 
 

HHA/016 Average number of days families with children spent in B&B 
accommodation 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Avg Days 13.60 11.80 4.00 16.60 34.00

Target 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarter Target 7 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
R 

 
 
 
 

G 

G 

Page 56



Housing Services 
Quarter 2 Performance Report 
2012/2013  
  

Page 39 of 39 

HHA/017a Average number of days all homeless households spent in 
B&B accommodation  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Avg Days 6.80 16.05 12.22 26.70 30.81

Target 21.00 21.00 21.00 25.00 25.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarter Target 25 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
A 

 
 
 
 

HHA017b Average days all homeless households spent in other 
temporary accommodation 

0

100

200

300

400

Avg Days 340.25 163.21 237.00 199.13 262.60

Target 250.00 250.00 250.00 280.00 280.00

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13

Annual and Quarter Target 280 days

 
A downward direction of travel in this graph represents an improvement. 

 
G 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 
 

WEDNESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2012 

REPORT BY: 
 

MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 
 

SUBJECT:  
 

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 
 
1.00 
 
1.01 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Housing Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee. 

  
2.00 
 
2.01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.02 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Items feed into a Committee's Forward Work Programme from a number of 
sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be referred 
by the Executive for consultation purposes, or by County Council, or 
Directors.  Other possible items are identified from the Executive Work 
Programme and the Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges.  
 
In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful or a 'test of 
significance' to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows: 
 
1. Will the review contribute to the Council's priorities and/or objectives? 
2. Are there issues of weak or poor performance? 
3. How, where and why were the issues identified? 
4. Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any 

evidence of this?  Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction? 
5. Is there new Government guidance or legislation? 
6. Have inspections been carried out? 
7. Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review? 

  
3.00 
 
3.01 
 
 
 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine 
the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they are 
members.  By reviewing and prioritising the forward work programme 
Members are able to ensure it is member-led and includes the right issues.   
A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for 
Members' consideration which has been updated following the last meeting. 

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 59



4.00 
 
4.01 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme attached 
as Appendix 1  and approve/amend as necessary. 

  
5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
None as a result of this report. 

  
6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 

 
None as a result of this report. 

  
7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

 
None as a result of this report. 

  
8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 

 
None as a result of this report. 

  
9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

 
None as a result of this report. 

  
10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 

 
N/A 

  
11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 

 
Publication of this report constitutes consultation. 

  
12.00 APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 – Forward Work Programme 

  
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None. 

  
 Contact Officer: Robert Robins 

Telephone: 01352 702320 
Email: Robert.Robins@Flintshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 60



HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                      Appendix 1 

Created on 16 October 2012 1 

CURRENT FWP 

Date of 
meeting 

Subject Purpose of Report Scrutiny Focus 
Responsible / 

Contact Officer 
Submissio

n Deadline 

23 Jan 
2013 

Homelessness & Welfare 
Reform 
 
 
 
 
Sustainability in Housing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Private Sector Housing 
Renewal 

To consider the implications 
of Welfare Reform on 
Homelessness, and the 
proposals to mitigate the 
impact. 
 
To consider work 
undertaken within Housing 
Services, and future 
proposals including the 
potential use of water 
meters. 
 
To consider progress on the 
delivery of Flintshire’s first 
Renewal Area, general 
service development and 
county wide projects, to 
include work on empty 
homes. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Service Improvement 
 
 
 
 
 
Strategic 

Head of 
Housing 
 
 
 
 
Head of 
Housing 
 
 
 
 
Housing 
Renewal 
Manager 

14 Jan 
2013 

21 Feb 
2013 

Resident  Involvement  
 
 
 
 

To consider proposals to 
improve resident 
involvement 
 
 

Policy Development 
 
 
 
 

Neighbourhood 
Housing 
Manager 

12 Feb 
2013 

P
age 61



HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                      Appendix 1 

Created on 16 October 2012 2 

Sheltered Housing 
Improvement Project 

To receive an update 
following the 
implementation on the new 
service 
 

Service Improvement 

21 March 
2013 

Quarterly Performance 
Reporting 
 
 
Collaborative Working 
within Housing Services 

To consider Q3 
performance outturns for 
improvement targets. 
 
To receive and consider 
current and future 
collaborative initiatives. 
 

Performance Monitoring 
 
 
 
 
Collaboration 

Director of 
Community 
Services 
 
 
Head of 
Housing 

12 March 
2013 

24 April 
2013 

Adopted/Un-adopted land 
 
 
 
 
Repairs & Maintenance 
In-House DFG’s 

To consider HRA land that 
adopted and un-adopted 
together with management 
of garage sites. 
 
To enable Members to 
monitor the approach and 
effectiveness of repairs and 
improvements to the 
Council’s housing stock, to 
include proposals for the 
delivery of in-house DFG’s 
as previously approved. 
 

Member request 
 
 
 
 
Service Improvement 

Head of 
Housing 
 
 
 
Head of 
Housing 

15 April 
2013 

5 June 
2013 

Quarterly Performance 
Reporting 

To consider Q4, year end 
outturns for improvement 
targets. 

Performance Monitoring Director of 
Community 
Services 

29 May 
2013 

10 July 
2013 

To be determined    1 July 
2013 

P
age 62



HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                      Appendix 1 

Created on 16 October 2012 3 

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED as agreed by Committee 
 

Item 

 

Purpose of Report 

Responsible / 

Contact Officer 

 
 
REGULAR ITEMS 

Month Item Purpose of Report 
Responsible / 

Contact Officer 

Quarterly / 
Annual 

Performance Reporting To consider performance outturns for improvement targets 
against directorate indicators. 

Director of 
Community 

Six 
monthly  

Update on Repairs and 
Improvements 

To enable Members to monitor the approach and 
effectiveness of repairs and improvements to the Council’s 
housing stock, to include void management. 

Head of Housing 

Quarterly Sheltered Housing Improvement 
Project 

To receive progress with the review on sheltered 
accommodation. 

 

Six 
monthly 

Private Sector Housing Renewal To consider progress on the delivery of Flintshire’s first 
Renewal Area, general service development and county 
wide projects. 

Head of Housing 

Quarterly Collaborative Working within 
Housing Services 

To receive and consider current and future collaborative 
initiatives. 

Head of Housing 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 63



HOUSING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                      Appendix 1 

Created on 16 October 2012 4 

 
 
 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND CHALLENGES 

TOPICS ALLOCATED TO OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

 

SECTION 1 - COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP 

Category 
Risk 

Reference 
Title Committee 

Strategic 

Partnerships 

CL04 Affordable Housing Housing 

 

 

SECTION 2 - COUNCIL DELIVERY 

Category 
Risk 

Reference 
Title Committee 

Environment CD08 Shotton and Deeside Renewal Area Housing 

Housing CD12a Housing Strategy C&H 

 CD12b Housing Management C&H 

 CD12c Housing Repairs & Maintenance C&H 

 CD12d Homelessness C&H 

 CD12e Sheltered Housing Housing 

 CD14 Housing Ballot C&H 

 CD19 Gypsies and Travellers C&H 

Social Care CD26 Disabled Facilities Grants S&H and 

Housing (joint 

meetings) 

 

APPENDIX B 

P
age 64


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Gypsy/Travellers Needs Assessment
	Enc. 1 for Gypsy/Travellers Needs Assessment

	5 Quarter 2 Service Performance Reports
	Enc. 1 for Quarter 2 Service Performance Reports

	6 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	Enc. 1 for FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME


